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Mr. Lon R. Trotter
Vice President
Corporate Services Division
Alyeska Pipeline Service Company
1835 South Bragaw Street
Anchonge, Alaska 995 12

Re: CPF No. 5-2000-5006

Dear Mr. Trotter:

Enclosed is the Final Order issued by the Associate Administrator for Pipeline Safety in the
above-referenced case. The Final Order makes findings of violation with respect to Items 18, 2, 3a
and 8 (Item # as alleged in the Notice of Probable Violation dated Feb. 10,2000); withdraws the
allegations of violation with respect to Items 1 b, 3b, 6a and 7; specifies actions to betaken to comply
with the pipeline safety regulations with respect to Items 2 and 8; and assesses a civil penalty of
$62,500. Your receipt of the Final Order constitutes service of that document under 49 C.F.R.

§ 190.5.

Enclosure

Lee Schoen
Sheila Bishop
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Sincsely,

J- O~~
James Reynolds
Pipeline Compliance Registry
Office of Pipeline Safety



DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTAnON
RESEARCH AND SPECIAL PROGRAMS ADMINISTRA nON

WASHINGTON, DC

In the Matter of

Alyeska Pipeline Service Company.

Respondent.

On April 14-l8t September 13-18t and September 29-30t 1999t a representative of the Office of
Pipeline Safety (OPS)t pursuant to 49 U.S. C. § 60 111 t conducted on-site pipeline safety inspections
of Respondent's facilities and records from Pump Station #1 to Fairbanks on the Trans Alaska

Pipeline System (TAPS).

As a result of the inspectionst the Directort Western Regi~ OPSt issued to Respondentt by letter
dated February lOt 2000t a Notice of Probable Vio1atio~ Proposed Civil Penaltyt Proposed
Compliance Order and Notice of Amendment (Notice). In accordance with 49 C.F .R. § 190.201,
the Notice proposed finding that Respondent had violated 49 C.F.R. §§ 192.119(b)t 192.463(a)t
195.401, 195.406t 195.416(a)t 195.416(c) and 195.420tp1'Opose<iassessingacivilpenaltyof$15,OOO
for several of the alleged violations, and proposed that Respondent take certain measures to correct
the alleged violations. The Notice also proposed, in accordance with 49 C.F.R. § 190.231, that
Respondent amend its procedures for OperaUODSt Maintenance and Emergencies.

Respondent responded to the Notice by letter dated April 14, 2000 (Response). Respondent
contested the allegations, submitted detailed information to explain the allegations and reserved the
right to a hearing. On November 7, 2000, Respondent requested a hearing and submitted further
information to address the allegations. The hearing was held in the Western Region, OPS, on
February 9,2001. After the hearing, Respondent submitted a Closing Response dated March 19,

2001.

Item 1 in the Notice alleged that Respondent had violated 49 C.F.R. § 192. 179(b). that requires each
sectionalizing block valve on a transmission line to be readily Kccssible and protected from
tampering and damage and to be supported to prevent the settling of the valve or movement of the
pipe. The Notice alleged that the mainline valve (MGV -6) on the fuel gas line was not protected
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from tampering and damage because it was located adjacent to the main highway but was not fenced
or marked with signs. The Notice further alleged that the valve was leaning and not supported. At
the hearing, OPS expressed concern about a vehicle backing into the valve or a hunter shooting at
the valve because of the lack of fencing and signs.

In its Response and at the hearing, Respondent explained that the valve had not been fenced at the
time of OPS's inspection because the valve was undergoing a planned maintenance. The
maintenance took place from June - September 1999. Respondent said it had removed the fence
because of the maintenance but that the valve was padlocked and secured during this time.
Respondent further maintained that the line was not in danger of impact from vehicular traffic
because the valve is located 68 feet from the highway and the highway ditch and tundra mounds
create natural barriers. Respondent added that the location is remote and the highway has little

tram c .

Respondent agreed that the valve had been leaning but maintained that it was adequately supported.
Respondent said that as part of the maintenance, it fe-bedded, insulated and backfilled the valve and
pipeline and that the field measurements it took after exposing the pipe confimled that no settlement

had occurred.

Section 192. 179(b) requires that the valve be protected from tampering and damage. The valve was
not fenced from June to September 1999 while the maintenance was performed and, during this
period, Respondent did not place warning signs near the valve. Although the valve was in a remote
area and during maintenance was chained and locked, nothing was in place for several months to
alert anyone to the presence of the valve. A padlock was some protection, but a warning barrier and
sign placed near the valve would have provided further protection by alerting anyone in the area to
the valve's presence. Accordingly, I find that Respondent violated 49 C.F.R. § 192.179(b).

As for the allegation that the valve was not suppo~ Respondent demonstrated that the valve,
although leaning, was at all times properly supported. Therefore, I am withdrawing this allegation.

Item 2 alleged that Respondent bad violated 49 C.F .R. § 192.463(a), which requires an operator's
cathodic protection system to provide a level of cathodic protection to comply with one or more of
the applicable criteria specified in Part 192's Appendix D. The Notice alleged that Respondent's fuel

gas line piping inside Pump Station #1 did not have adequate cathodic protection.

Respondent argued that all of its regulated piping is either above ground and does not require
cathodic protection, or is buried immediately downstream of the pig trap and confonns to all
conditions of the agreement it entered into with OPS in 1996. Respondent maintained that this
agreement exempts such piping from standard cathodic protection criteria. OPS contended that the

agreement did not cover this piping.

Respondent further maintained that, for the buried piping at issue, there was only one low cathodic
protection reading out of five readings in the data set. Respondent argued that its measurements on
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the line demonlb'lte that there wu only ~ measmanalt location with a low readiDa (Test Point
14) and that location is in a frozen environment that poses little corrosion risk. Respondent
presented data showing that in 1997, 1998 and 1999, the cathodic protection levels at the other four
locations exceeded the -ssOmv criterion specified in Appendix D. OPS did not diJpUte this data.

The 1996 agreement refcmd to is an IIrCeInCllt si~ betw=t Respondent and . fonner OPS
Western Regional Director for Respondent to adopt a rilk-baed approach for monitoring corrosion
control. The aareement coven allS-inch and 10-inch fuel pi line piping inside Pump Station 1 that
CID be intaDally inspected The fuel gal liDe inside Pump Station 1 falls within the ~ of the
agr ~-meiit. UIXIer the agreement, R.e8poIMient WM to pIbOlllxl })erfoou leakage surveys. to ra:onI
pipeline condition corrosion infonnation, to maintain the cathOOic protection system. and to obtain
annual cathodic protection readings.

The agreement for the risk-bued approach to com)Sioo control is BOt a waiver, pursuant to 49 V.S.C.
§ 60118, waiving Respondent's requirement to comply with the cathodic protection requirements
of § 192.463. A waiver must go through public notice and opportunity for a hearing and is granted
after the AJIOCiate Administrator for Pipeline Safety (through delegated authority from the Sccrdary
ofTrmspOI1atioo) detennines that the waiver is consistent with public safety, aIKi states the reasons
for grmting the waiver. The agreement did oot go through public notice and comment. Because this
agreement wu not a legal waiver, the fuel 8M piping inside Pump Station 1 had to be cathodically
protected according to the requirements of § 192.463, i.e., the protection had to meet one of the
specified Appendix D critaia. Respooda1t'. data awed that Test Point 14 had low readi-'-85 from
1997-1999. Accordingly, I fiOO that ~ wu a violation of 49 C.F.R. § 192.463 II the fifth
measurement location. located dowu.uailu of the colDIX'~.

IfRe8p)ooent continues to believe that altcmltive oo"~ ccxI1IOl metiX)ds, in lieu of compliance
with § 192.463, should be applied to the fuel gas line at Pmnp Station 1. RCIIK'ndent must apply for
a section 60118 waiver.

Item 3 alleged twovio~of49C.F.R. § §195.401(a)8i195.401(b): thatRespondattopcntcd
a section or the Trans Aluka Pipeline System It a level of safety lower than that required by the
regulations, and did not correct two conditions (curvature aDd corrosion) within a reuonable time.
The first allegation was that ftom 1992-1997. Respondent wu aware that the Main Line
Refri~oo Unit #2 (MLR2) was DOt MieqU8te to JXeYaIt pipeline settlement 8IxI the pipeline had
settled to 1000/. or critical~. (MLR2 JXOvides refrigeration to the soil beneath the 1.8 mile
segment of pipeline between MP 652.031nd MP 653.83.)

The !«ODd allegation in Itan 3 was that ReIpOlMIent wu aware in 1991, when it excavated die pipe
within the 1.8 mile segment, that the clam shell insulation surroundinS the pipeline wu damaaed
and saturated with water, and that because the pipeline wu not cathodically protected, external
oorr--uiion would occur on the pipeline. The Notice alleged dIIt Respondent confinned this condition
when it excavated a ~tion of pipeline It MP 652.26 in 1999, 8KI fouDd serious corrosion ~~uaed

by damaged and saturated insulation.
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ResporMlent maintained that it bad respoDdcd in a timely ~ to maintain a level of pipeline
safety requircd by the regulations and that during 1992-1997 t it was engaged in monitoring,
evaluating aJxt mitigating the pipeline curvatW'e ~ COD'O8ion at MLR2. Respondent further
contended that neither condition compauiDised the intesrity of the pipeline.

~ature

0 PS contaxled that RelpGMlaIt'.
thawed unstable soils in the 8C8 of MP 652.03 to 652.83, resulting in damage to the mldergromld
insulation.

Respondent maintained that it took action between 1992-1997 to ackIress the curvature situation.
Respondent said that it became aware in late 1991 that a portion oftbe pipeline at MLR2 had settled
and that, beginning in 1992, took ~ to monitor, evaluate 8Id stabilize curvature resulting from
settlement at MLR2. Re8poIKient explaiDed tbIt tbeIe lCtiona included -

In February 1m, iDItalling 13 thermistor sbinp to monitor IOiI tem~~.

Rwming a ~ig in 1992, twice in 1993, again in 1994 11M! 1995 to ~ ~urately
measure pipeline i«;~~. Respondent said the data from the fint nm revealed high
curvature at MP 6S3.45, and in the subsequent nIns, the readinp showed no increue in the
curvature piping.

.

.

Running a deformation pig. which measures internal pipe radius. in 1992. 1995 8M! 1998.
Respondent maintained that the data showed no wrinkles in the pipe wall near MP 652.03.
or near MLR2.

.

Installing 39 additional monitoring rods in 1992, an additional 3 in 1997, and monitorin$ the
rods at least once each quarter. Respondent said that from June 1992 through D~ember
1997 the monitoring showed little lCttIaneDt

.

. In 1993. adding an additional refrigeration unit to stabilize the pennaftost soil beneath the

pipe.

. In 1997. retaining In indcpaxlent ~gincering coDIUItIDt to assess the situation at MP
653.45. According to Respondent. the consultant reported that there had been modest
changes in cmvature but d)e curvatures Wa'e dccI'eain& and the molt ~t1y measured

curv~ wu not In integrity concern.

In 1975. RespOIxI~t WU8J'8D ted a waiva' from compliance with the coati ng mid catlX)ciicprotec bon
requiranents in §§ 19S.238(aXS) Iud 195.242(a) on aeveralleCbOOS oftbe TAPS. The 1.8-milc-
mile s~tion at issue is covered by the waiver. The waiver allowed Respondent to UIC special coating
and reftigeration to safeguard the migratory animal crossinp apimt thawing o(d)e permafrost by
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the high ~_.ua oftbe ~ed pipe. OPS explaiDed that tbawina would ~ the ~ for
the pipe and increue the likelihood of conosion due to the presence of water. Although OPS
expressly found that one of the reasons for allowing the waiver wu that the refrigeration provided
additional protection because it would prevent liquid water, and eliminate the likelihood for
com>sive Ktion. OPS did not make Respondent's maintaining the refrigeration an express condition
of kcq»ing the waiv~. In 1986. RespoiKient turned ofT the mainline refrigeration \mits at MLR2.
which caused pipeline settlement and damage to the tmderground insulation.

The waiv~ did not relieve RespoDdCDt of the requirement off I 95.401 (b) to ~ an adva'le
condition on the pipeline within a reBJDablc time. RegardJesa of the cause, the pipe settled to 100-1.
critical curvature. Between late 1991 and, early 1992, Respondat became aware that the pipeline
at MLR2 bad settled. The pis runs in 1992, 1993, 1994 and 1995 confirmed that the pipeline was
at 1 (X)8I. critical cwvature. In 1993, RespolMlent Idded additional refrigeration in 111 a1tmJpt to
~~ the iauc. The 1995 pia nIB Ipin showed 1 (X)8I. critical~. AJ1hougb RCSlXJndent
monitored the condition, it did not tate Idditionalltepi to attempt to correct the problem \DItil it
added more ~frigcration in 1997. This was DOt correcting the curvature problem within a reasonable
time.

Accordingly, I find that Respondent violated § I 9S.401 (b) byootcoil«tingwithin a reuonabletime
the pipeline curvature that resulted from settlement at MLR2.

r ~

OPS arogued dI8t the 1975 waiver wu prmrised on the tb«Jry that the applied thermal insulation
design would mitigate corrosion from occurring; therefore, if Respondent determined d1at the
tmderground insulation was in a corrosive environment, Respondent had to add cathodic protection.
OPS con~ that Resporldcnt knew in 1m, when it excavated pipe at the MLR2 site (around
RGY 98A near MP 653.08). dI8t the pipe was in a cc;..uiive mviroament but did not install a sleeve
8IMI iJDf;i:-~ cunaIt \DJti11999 when it fomxI6oeI. walliosa at the girth weld at MP 652.46. OPS
arlueci d1at ReIpoI)da.t knew the waiver wu oot valid bec:a--~ it knew the pipe WII in a comJIive
environment, and further, that once Respondent bad knowledge of the corrosion on the segment, was
required by § 195.416 to have added cathodic prot~tion.

ResfM)Ildmt countered that the oriaiDaJ 1975 waiva- was not invalidated by the dilCOvery of the
damaged insulation during the 1991 excavation IIKI that its obliption to cathodically P'Otect the pipe
was not triggered until the waiver was amelKied in t 995, and then only when injurious corrosion was
detected. Respondent maintained that the waiver did not require it to anticipate corrosion.

Respotxlent fw1her contelxled that aldk)ugb it met the waiver conditions, it, nevcrtbeleu.
investigated conosion mitigation methods. Respondent explained that the test holel excavated in
1991 did not show corrosion to be a problem, confmned by the smart pig. which did not show
anomalies at MP 652.46. Respondent explained that beginning in 1992. it took the following steps
to monitor. evaluate .xl mitigate corrosion at MP 652.46.
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In 1992, fe-evaluating the pig data using more stringent standards and finding one anomaly
that indicated wall loss of less than 200/0.

.

In 1994, nmning a conosion pig and monitoring the data. Respondent maintained that the
pig detected 400/0 wall loss near a girth weld but Respondent detennined that the anomalies
did not warrant a corrosion dig.

In 1995, conducting a study of coITOSion mechanisms on below ground pipe that showed a

calculated colTOsion rate of 5 mills per year.

In 1996, re-nmning the colTOsion pig and finding no increase in pit depth at MP 652.46 since

the 1994 nIn.

In 1997, running a corrosion pig. analyzing the corroded region according to RSTRENG ad

.

.

.

.
detennining it to be safe.

h11998. rum1ing a smart pig that found the axial length to be It.
within the range of safety.

In 1999, excavating MP 652.46 and finding.
original pipe thickness.

As previously discussed, OPS, in 1975, granted Respondent a waiver from the coating and cathodic
protection requirements of §§ 195.238(a) and 195.242(a) on certain sections ofthem1ally insulated
mainline piping, that include the l.8-mile segment at MLR2. One of the premises for OPS granting
the waiver was that the applied design would mitigate corrosion from occuning under the insulation.
In 1995, OPS amended the waiver because of information that the thermal insulation design had not
prevented all corrosion from occurring. The amendment allowed Respondent to continue under the
waiver subject to certain conditions. Respondent was to conduct annual internal inspection tool
corrosion surveys capable of detecting and assessing potentially injurious corrosion. If the survey
data indicated areas of potentially injurious corrosion, Respondent was to fe-coat and cathodically
protect the excavated piping to comply with §§ 195.238(a)(5) and 195.242(a).

In 1991-1992, Respondent found that the insulation sunounding the pipeline at MLR2 was damaged
and the pipe was corroding. Respondent was aware that two bases on which the waiver was based
were faulty - that the outer jacket would be a relatively impermeable barrier to moisture, and
corrosion would be minimized because of other mitigating factors. However, the 1975 waiver did
not provide that should a premise for the waiver prove faulty Respondent was to add cathodic
protection, or that either OPS or Respondent revisit the basis for granting the waiver.

The 1995 amendment to the waiver required Respondent to run internal inspection tools capable of
detecting oom>sion. Respondent did so in 1996. According to Respondent the data showed no
increase in pit depth from a nm in 1994. Respondent ran a pig again in 1997. ana1yz.ed the con'oded
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region at MP 652.46 and detennined it to be safe \Older RSTRENG. When, in 1999, Respondent
excavated the pipe at MP 652.46, it found the wall loss to be approximately 650/. of the original pipe
thickness, and installed a pipe sleeve.

The requirement to add cathodic protection did not take effect until injurious corrosion was found.
According to Respondent this did not occur but Respondent, nonetheless. installed a permanent
impressed current system. OPS did not dispute this contention or show that injurious corrosion
occurred before 1999. prompting Respondent to apply cathodic protection. Thus. I do not find a
basis for concluding that waiver required Respondent to apply cathodic protection to the corroded

region before 1999.

However, the waiver did not exempt Respondent from compliance with § 195.401, which requires
Respondent to operate its pipeline at the level of safety required by the regulations and to correct any
adverse condition within a reasonable time. Corrosion is an adverse condition that can affect the
safety and integrity of a pipeline. As previously discussed, Respondent evaluated and monitored
corrosion at MLR2 between 1992-1999. Respondent volWltarily ran a corrosion pig in 1994, and
detected wall loss near a girth weld. Morever, according to Respondent, the length of the anomaly
did not warrant a corrosion dig Wlder prevailing standards. According to Respondent the results of
the additional pig runs and analyses did not show that additional action needed to be taken before
1999 to address the corrosion at MP 652.46. Under these circumstances, I cannot conclude that §

195.401 required more.

Respondent further maintained that dIe level of safety at MP 652.46 was never less than d1at
required. Respondent explained that its hydraulics group determined that from 1992-1995, a
pressure of823 psi could have been reached, but that the maximum pressure would have been 750
psi. From 1995-2000, the corroded pipe at MP 652.46 could have withstood 855 psi with a safety
factor of 1.39, but d1at the maximum pressure was 477 psi. OPS has not disputed this analysis.

I do not find d1at the evidence supports a finding d1at Respondent violated §§195.401(a) and
195.401(b) with respect to the corrosion at MLR 2, and am withdrawing the allegation.

Item 5 in the Notice alleged Respondent violated 49 C.F .R. §§ 195 .406( a)-(b), when on October 16,
1999, a pressure relief event occun'ed at Pump Station 5 causing an over pressure of Check Valve
No. V203. The regulation does not allow an operator to operate a pipeline at a pressure that exceeds
the internal design pressure of the pipe or the design pressure of any other component of the pipeline.
The regulation further requires an operator to provide adequate controls and protective equipment
to control the pressure within the required limits. The Notice alleged that a similar event occurred
at Pump Station 9 on September 12,1995 causing an overpressure of Booster Pump Valve B20S.
The Notice referenced two odIer over pressure situations (one in August 1997, one in August 1998)
that had been the subject of anodIer enforcement action (CPF No. 59502).

Respondent did not dispute that the over pressures had occurred but maintained that the two events
cited in this Notice had fundamentally different root C8U-~ from the two that were the subject of
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CPF No. 59502. Respondent maintained that the over p~sures at Pump Stations 5 and 9 were the
result of pressure pulses created by a vapor bubble. Respondent explained that at Pump Station 9,
the vapor bubble was caused by inadequate refilling of piping that had been drained during a
shutdown; at Pump Station 5, the vapor bubble was caused by closing the mainline reliefvaJves too
quickly. Respondent explained that the August 2, 1997 and August 5, 1998 over pressures cited in
CPF No. 59502 resulted from human error at the Valdez Operations Control Center.

On September 12, 1995, at Pump Station 9, an over pressure ofBooster Pump Valve B20S occurred.
On October 16, 1999, at Pump Station 5, an over pressure ofcbeck valve No. V203 occurred.
Accordingly, I find that Respondent violated 49 C.F.R. §§ 195.4O6(a)-(b) on these two occasions.
I will discuss Respondent's response further in the penalty assessment aDd compliance order sections

of this document.

Item 6 alleged that Respondent violated 49 C.F.R § 195.416(a), which requires that an operator. at
specified intervals, conduct tests on each pipeline facility under cathodic protection that is buried,
in contact with the ground, or submerged, to determine if the cathodic protection is adequate. The
Notice alleged that Relief Tank 190 did not have adequate cathodic protection because the cathodic
protection levels did not meet the NACE -850m Vorl 00m V depolarization criteria required by
NACE RPO 169.

Respondent maintained that Relief Tank 190 is cathodically protected and meets the current Part 195
cathodic protection requirements. OPS made the allegations of violation after it had inspected the
tank in April 1999. In May 1999. a final rule took effect in which OPS adopted consensus industry
standards regarding cathodic protection of aboveground petrolemn storage tanks. The rule required
compliance with the standards by October 2000. One of the !t!!!~ OPS incorporated was API
Recommended Practice 653 on TankInspec tion, Repair, Alteration and Reconstruction. OPS agrees
that. under the API recommended practice. the cathodic protection on Tank 190 is adequate.
Therefore, I will withdraw this allegation of violation.

Item 7 alleged that Respondent had exceeded the 2Yrmonth inspection interval required by 49 C.F .R.
§ I 95.416(c) on rectifiers 33-EE-I23, 124, 125 and 127 at Pump Station 3', and rectifiers 36-EE-125
and 126 at Pump Station 6. The Notice alleged that the Pump Station 3 rectifiers had been inspected
on April 27 and on August 14, 1999, and the Pump Station 6 rectifiers on February 25 and June 29,
1999. The Notice further alleged that rectifiers 35-EE-l 0 1, 103 and 104 at Pump Station 5 were not

working properly.

Respondent maintained that the cited rectifiers were inspected within the required 2Y2-month
intervals. Respondent submitted printouts from its computerized data management system, which
showed that the four Pump Station 3 rectifiers were inspected on April 27, June 29 and August 14,

'The Notice incorrectly cited Pump Station 1.
Station 3.

8

PumpThe rectifiers at issue are located at



1999. Respondent maintained the infonnation in the database is based on field records that are
stored at various locations, or were misp1~ which is why the OPS inspector could not locate all
of them. The printouts were corroborated with security logs from the pump station. which show that
the inspector was at the pump station on those dates.

Respondent presented field records showing inspection dates for the two Pump Station 6 rectifiers
of February 17, February 24-25, and June 29, 1999. Respondent argued that it was unlikely two
inspections at Pump Station 6 bad occurred in February and that the log entries were in error.
Respondent maintained that its inspector had conducted the inspection on April 24-25, but had
misdated the entry. Respondent said its computerized work order system confirmed that the
inspection had actually occurred on April 24-25. Respondent also submitted copies of its security
logs that show the rectifiers bad been inspected in April 1999.

With respect to the malfunctioning rectifiers, Respondent said that its review showed no evidence
of a fuse problem. RespoIKient said its records did not show any fuse replacements at 35-EE 103 and
104 at Pump Station 5, but that fuses were replaced at 35-EE-I 01 on several occasions. Respondent
argued that there was no evidence of inadequate cathodic pro~on as a result of the blown fuses.

Respondent has demonstrated that it insp~ted the Pump Station 3 and 6 rectifiers within the required
21f1-month intervals. Accordingly, I withdraw the allegation of violation. As for the alleged fuse
problem at the three cited rectifiers at Pump Station S, Respondent demonstrated that the fuses were
working at rectifiers 3S EE-103 and 104. At rectifier 35 EE-l 01, there may have been a problem
with fuses blowing, but OPS presented DO evidence that mis resulted in a pipeline safety violation.
Accordingly, I withdraw this allegation of violation.

Item 8 alleged that Respondent violated 49 C.F .R. § 195 .42O(b) because it did not require function
testing of the Battery Limit (BL) valv~ BL1 and BL2 at Pump Stations 2, 6, 8 and 10. The
regulation requires mainline valves to be inspected at intervals not exceeding 7 Yz months, but at least
twice each calendar year, to determine that the valves are functioning properly.

The Notice alleged that although the cited pump stations are not in service, the valves, nonetheless.
must be maintained according to § 195.42O(b) because they are located on the mainline pipe that
nms through the manifold building at each pump station, act as pump station isolation valves and
are subject to mainline flow and pressure. At the hearing, OPS expressed concern that the out-of-
service BL valves at ramped-down pump stations could affect the worst-case scenario of oil spill

response planning.

Respondent disagreed and argued that seven of the eight cited BL valves do not require biannual
inspections because they were installed to perInit isolation of pump station equipment. not as

mainline valves to minimize damage or pollution from accidental discharge. Moreover, Respondent
said the seven valves are not operational. and no longer function to isolate pump station equipment.
Respondent explained that it treats pump station isolation valves as mainline valves in its procedural
manual. and requires biannual testing when the valves are in service. In its closing response,'
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Respondent added that it has never included the valves in its valve plan for minimizing damage or
--. - . - - -- .

pollution from accidental discharge.

Respondent said the status of the eighth valve (BLI at Pump Station 10) has changed and it now acts
as a remote gate valve and operates on the mainline in a manner that would minimize damage or
pollution. Respondent said it is inspecting this valve biannually.

I find that the remaining seven BL valves at issue are mainline valves. Although Respondent may
not consider the valves as essential to minimizing damage from an accidental discharge. the valves.
nonetheless, are located on either side of pump stations on the 48-inch mainline pipeline. and are
subject to mainline flow and pre~. Crude oil flows continuously through the BL valves from
Pump Station # I to Valdez. As mainline valves. they must be inspected at the intervals required by
§ 19S.42O(b). Because Respondent has locked open the valves. it has not maintained the valves.
Widlout stroking the valves at the required inspection intervals, Respondent has no way of knowing
if they could close, if a situation ever warranted their closure.

Accordingly, I find that Respondent v
Pump So 2, 6, 8 and 10 at the specified intervals.rations

Under 49 U.S.C. § 60122, Respondent is subject to a civil penalty not to exceed SI00,(XX) per
violation for e.:h day of the violation up to a max.imum of $1,000,000 for any related series of
violations. The Notice proposed a total civil penalty of$75,<XX> for violation of §§ 195.401 and
195.406 (Items 3 and 5).

49 V.S.C. § 60122 and 49 C.F.R. § 190.225 require that, in detennining the amount of the civil
penalty. I consider the following criteria: nature. circwnstances. and gravity of the violation. degree
of Respondent's culpability. history of Respondent's prior offenses, Respondent's ability to pay the
penalty, good faith by Respondent in attempting to achieve compliance. the effect on Respondent's
ability to continue in business. and such other matters as justice may require.

The Notice proposed a civil penalty of$25,(MX) for violation of 49 C.P.R. § 195.401 - operating a

section of pipeline at a level of safety lower than that required by Part 195, and not corr~ting an
adverse condition within a reasonable time. As discussed in dte Findings section, there were two
different allegations of violation. I found that Respondent had violated § 195.401 for not correcting
the curvature problem at MLR2 within a reasonable time, but withdrew the allegation of violation
concerning the actions taken to address corrosion in dte I.S-mile segment. Respondent did not
con'ect the curvature within a reasonable time. The pipe remained at 1000/0 critical curvature - that

is, it was at its maximum wrinkle bend potential - for an extended period until Respondent installed
additional refrigeration. I fmd a civil penalty of$12,500 reasonable for this violation.
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The Notice proposed a civil penalty of $50,000 for the over pressures of the line that were in
violation of 49 C.F.R. § 195.406. Respondent objected to the amount of the proposed civil penalty.
Respondent acknowledged that over pressure of the pipeline bad occurred in 1995, 1997, 1998 and
1999 but that the two events that were the subject of this Notice had different causes from the two
that were cited in another enforcement action. Respondent has demonstrated that the two cited in
this Notice - the September 12, 1995 and October 16, 1999 events - were related to collapsing vapor
bubbles in relief piping at pump stations and were distinct ftom those that were cited in CPF No.
59502. Nonetheless, two over pressure events occun'cd that had similar causes. Respondent did not
take action to evaluate and address the cause for the 1995 over pressure. Had Respondent done so,
a similar situation resulting from a vapor bubble might not have occurred in 1999. Both over
pressures resulted in the leak of crude oil. I do not find a $50,000 civil penalty unreasonable in light

of these facts.

Accordingly, baving reviewed the record and considered the assessment criteria, I assess ResJKXxlent

a total civil penalty ofS62,500.

Payment of the civil penalty must be made within 20 days of service. Federal re'gulations
(49 C.F .R. § 89.21(b )(3»requ ire this payment be made by wire transfer, through the FederaJ Reserve
Communications System (Fedwire), to the account of the U.S. Treasury. Detailed instructions are
contained in the enclosure. Questions concerning wire transfen should be directed to: Financial
Operations Division (AMZ-120), Federal Aviation Administration, Mike Monroney Aeronautical
Center, P.o. Box 25082, Oklahoma City, OK 73125; (405) 954-4719.

Failure to pay the $62,500 civil peoaItywill result in accroal of interest at the current annual rate in
accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 3717,31 C.F.R § 901.9 and 49 C.F.R. § 89.23. Pursuant to those same
authorities, a late penalty charge of six percent (6%) per annum will be charged if payment is not
made within 110 days of service. Furthermore, failure to pay the civil penalty may result in referral
of the matter to the Attorney General for appropriate action in an United States District Court.

Item 6 in the Notice also alleged that three cathodic protection test stations at Pump Station 1 (RC20,
21 and 38) did not meet the NACE -8SOmV or lOOmV depolarization criteria.

Respondent agreed that reference cells (RC) 20 and 21 in Box C showed low cathodic protection
levels, but argued d1at the other three reference cells in that box show adequate cathodic protection.
Respondent further maintained that although the RC 38 in Box D is defective, the other 15 reference
cells in that Box show adequate cathodic protection. Respondent contended that, in any event, the

environment in the insulated boxes is one that hinders corrosion and cathodic protection. Although
the notice cited § 195.416(a), the issue is not whether Respondent was conducting tests at the
required intervals to determine if the cathodic protection was adequate, but whether Respondent
colTected the low potentials within a reasonable time, as required by § 195.401 (b). Respondent has
not been able to correct the low readings of reference cells 20 and 21 at Pwnp Station 1. OPS has
confirmed that as of March 2002, reference cells 20 and 21 continue to be below criteria.
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Howevert the Notice did not propose a civil penalty or compliance action with respect to this
allegation of violation. Thereforet it is considered a warning item. Respondent is warned that it
should take appropriate action to co~t the low readin~ or enforcement action can be taken if a
subsequent inspection finds a violation.

COMPUANCE ORDER

The Notice proposed a compliance order with respect to items 1 t 2, 5, 6t 7 and 8.

For Item 1 (violation of 49 C.F.R § 192.179(b», the Notice proposed that ReSJK>ndent take
appropriate action to protect the facility from tampering and damage and to provide support for the
valve to prevent settling.

Respondent documented that it has fenced the valve and re-installed the warning signs. Respondent
bas also modified its procedures to require the installation of warning barriers and warning signs
when a fence is removed for valve maintenance. I withdrew the allegation concerning inadequate
support of the valve because the valve was adequately supported. Therefore. no further action is
necessary for Respondent to comply with this item.

With respect to Item 2 (violation of 49 C.F.R. § 192.463(a», the Notice proposed that Respondent
evaluate the cathodic protection on the fuel gas line piping inside Pump Station 1 and take
appropriate action to bring the level of cathodic protection into compliance with one of the specified
criteria. In its closing response, Respondent said that it would use one or more of the criteria in
Appendix D to demonstrate the adequacy of cathodic protection on the buried portion of the fuel gas
line within the Pump Station 1 fence. Respondent further said that the four rectifiers it added in
2000 to the mainline and bonded to the fuel gas line will raise the overall level of cathodic
protection. The Region has confinned that Respondent added the rectifiers but that the cathodic
protection levels still do not meet either the -8SOmv or the 100 mv depolarization criteria. Therefore,
this item will remain in a compliance order.

For Item 5 (violation of 49 C.F.R. § 195.406), the Notice proposed that Respondent evaluate the
pipeline relief system at Pump Stations 5 and 9 for design deficiencies likely to cause over pressure
of pipeline components and to take appropriate corrective actions based on the evaluation.

Respondent demonstrated that the September 12, 1995 and October 16, 1999 over pressures were
distinct from those that occurred on August 2, 1997 and August 8, 1999. Respondent demonstrated
that it has addressed the hwnan error problems that led to the August 1997 and 1998 events by
revising operating procedures and implementing additional controller training, modifying control
logic to prevent restarting pumps with mainline valves not fully open, and updating Operations
Control Center and pump station displays to improve valve status indications.

To JMldrcss those events that were the subject of this enforcement action, Respondent explained that,
inter alia. it has evaluated the relief system piping at all operating pump stations, changed its training
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and operating practices addressing piping refill, and replaced needle valves in the hydraulic circuit
with orifices that will not drift open and let the relief valves close too quickly. The Western
Regional Director is satisfied with the actions Respondent has taken and no further compliance
action is required.

For Item 6 (violation of § 195.416(a», the Notice proposed that Respondent evaluate the cathodic
protection of Relief Tank 190 and take action to assure the tank is cathodically protected per the
specified criteria. This allegation of violation was withdrawn, therefore, no further action is
required .

For Item 7 (violation of § 19S.416(c» the Notice proposed that Respondent evaluate the operation
of~tifiers 3S-EE-IOI, 103, and 104 and take action to assure tbeyoperate reliably. I withdrew this
allegation of violation, tb~~fure, no further action is required.

For Item 8 (violation of §19S.42O(b», further action is required with respect to the seven Block
Mainline valves.

Under 49 V.S.C. § 60118(a), each person who owns or operates a pipeline fKility is required to
romp I y with the app Ii cab I e safety standards cstab lished under chapter 60 I. Pursuant to the autbori ty
of 49 V.S.C. § 6O118(b) aDd 49 C.F.R. § 190.217, Respondent is hereby ordered to take the
following ~tions to ensure compliance with the pipeline safety regulations applicable to its

operations.

Continue to evaluate the cathodic protection of the fuel gas line piping inside Pump Station
1. Take appropriate action to bring the level of cathodic protection at all measurement
locations on the line into compliance with at least one of the applicable criteria specified in
Appendix D of Part 192.

.1.

Conduct inspections at the intervals required in 49 C.F.R. § 19S.42O(b) for Block mainline
valves BL 1 and BU at Pump Stations 2, 6, 8 and 10. Amend}'Our operating and
maintenance procedures to provide that the valves are to be inspected in ~cordance with

§ 19S.42O(b).

Prepare an implementation plan and schedule to carry out each of the required items. Submit
the plan and schedule within 30 days after ~ipt of this Final Order to the Western Regional
Director. The Director must approve the plan and schedule.

,~

3.

The Notice (Item 4) alleged inadequacies in Respondent's Procedural Manual for Operations,
Maintenance and Emergencies (OM-l document) and proposed that Respondent amend the
document to include procedures for the new breakout tank requirements.
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Respondent did not contest this allegation. Respondent explained that the new regulations on
breakout tanks became effective in May 1999, with compliance required by October 2000, and
Respondent had not yet updated its document before the OPS inspections in 1999. Respondent said
it has since updated its manual to incorporate the new requirements.

Respondent submitted a copy of its amended procedures, which dIe Director, Western Region, OPS
reviewed. Accordingly, based on the results of this review, I find that Respondent.s original
procedures as described in the Notice were inadequate to ensure safe operation of its pipeline system,
but that Respondent has corrected the identified inadequacies. No need exists to issue an order
directing amendment.

Under 49 C.F.R. § 190.215. Respondent has a right to petition for reconsjderation of this Final
Order. The petition must be recei ved wjthin 20 days of Respondent's receipt of this FmaI Order and
must contain a brief statement of the issue(s). The filing of the petition automatically stays the
payment of any civil penalty assesse<l All other terms oftbe order, including any required conective
action, shall remain in full effect unless the Associate Administrator, upon request, grants a stay.
The terms and conditions of this Final Order are effective upon receipt.
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